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The American Brewery brew house is a unique example of nineteenth

century industrial architecture. Its height and organization of interior
spaces were predetermined by the requirements of brewing but the ex-
terior details are expressions of the age and of the people who lived

and worked in the area, In style, it can best be described as '"middle-
Europecan Chalet,"

The brew house is five stories high but its three towers make it seem
taller, The central tower is scven stories and the two on either side
are six, The building's stained glass windows, detailed exterior brick-
work and varied windows with arched, rounded, rectangular, and square
shapes add a sense of the unusual to the residential neighborhood,

The interior of the structure is largely unaltered although some sections
have been modernized and others are no longer in use.

There are two buildings across the strecet from the brew house that were
built during the same period and the three together show how a late
nineteenth century brewery would have appeared. The southernmost of
these was built in 1896 as a residence for the brewery owners. It is

a three story brick building with brownstone trim. The door frame and
cornice are brownstone with rosette decorations, The rosctte motif is
repeated in the cornices of the windows with a corbel in the center. The
building itself has a wooden cornice now painted green. At present, the
windows are boarded up and the interior is gutted.

The office building next door is two stories high and has three sections.
The southernmost section has a rusticated brownstone facade. Brown-
stone archivolts frame the first floor door and window. The four rec-
tangular windows of the second floor are arranged symmetrically over the
first floor divisions. Above the roof line, there is a triangular
section of stone with the date 1892 inscribed on it. The middle section
is the same as the first described except that it is brick with stone
archivolts. The triangular stone section has the date 1896 on it. The
last and northernmost section was built in 1900 and is also brick. The
facade has six divisions implied by brick arches and a slightly larger
central section where the garage door is. Each of the smaller sections
includes one semi-arched first floor window and one arched second floor
window. The central section is slightly taller than the others and
includes two windows above the large door.
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The American Brewery is a monument to the development of brewing, one

of Baltimore's major industries, and to the Germans who worked there and

lived in the area, The first brewery on the side was erected in 1863
by John Frederick Wiessner on land leased from Charles Rogers. At

the time, there were 21 other breweries in Baltimore City and nearby
sections of Baltimore County. Wiessner's brewery was a great success
and the business quickly outgrew the original building. The present
structure was built in 1887 to enlarge and modernize the brewery,

The brewery was one of the finest in the state and it continued to
operate until Prohibition, The Wiessners unsuccessfully attempted to
produce 'near-beer," 3,2% added, but, in 1931 they were forced to sell
the brewery to the FitzSimmons family who owned the American Malt
Company, subsequently the American Brewery. The brewery is still used
to brew beer although it is now a division of Allegheny Beverage Cor-
poration. The products made there today are Heibrau, Keg, American
and Arrow beers, They also make Malta Schaefer for the Schaefer
Company .

Many of the Wiessners employeces were Germans who had been brewers before
y 1

their emigration, and they settled near the brewery. The owners also
lived in the area. The residence across the street from the brew house
was built for the Wiessners and was later used by the FitzSimmons.

The keg office was in the southernmost end of the other building across
the street from the brew house. The bottle shop was in the middle
section and the bottling plant was in the northernmost section. The
entire building is now used for office space and storage.
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B-82
AMERICAN BREWERY
Baltimore City

NAME American Brewery

LOCATION 1700 North Gay Street
Baltimore, Maryland

ARCHITECY
DATES 1887

OWNER American Brewery Company

The American Brewery is not only a unigue piece of
nineteenth-century industrial architecture, but also played
an important role in the history of Baltimore business and
the development of one of its major industries, brewing.

With its variety of stained glass windows, three in-
credible towers, detalled exterior brickwork, uand exuberant
silhouette, it dominates the skyline of east Baltimore. Its
style of architecture, easily identifiable with the ethnic
background of the Germans whose homes surrounded it and who
worked there, can best be described as "Middle European
Chalet."”

The structure was erected in 1887 for John Fredexick
Wiessner who had owned a small brewery on that site since
1863. No record naming the architect has been found. The
area was replete with breweries, there being 21 separate
operations in Baltimore City and the surrounding county at
the time Wiessner opened his new building. It covered an
area of about two acres and was equipped with the latest
brewing machinery and ice equipment. Its capacity in 1887
was 100,000 barrels.

The Wiessner family operated the business until Prohibition
when they sold it to the FitzSimmons family who continued in
operation as the American Malt Company until after the repeal
of Prohibition in 1933. American, a division of the Allegheny~-
Pepsi Beverage Corporation, continues to produce beer in the
hrewery.

Across the street from the brewery stand three brick
buildings. One is a three-story, three-bay long townhouse

(continued)
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with large side yard enclosed by a brick and cast iron fence.
The brownstone window sills and segmental arches continue in
unbroken lines across the facade, giving the needed horizontal
effect to the otherwise vertical building. Its details are in
the EBEastlake and North Italian Renaissance styles.

The double, two-story building north of the aforementioned
yvard is built in the Romanesque style, half in rough brownstone,
half in brick and granite., Both parts of the double building
are nearly identical, the former having a door in one of its
two arches,

Adjoining the double building is a two-story, seven-bay
long structure used for a warehouse. Each bay is separated
by pilaster strips. The central bay has a large opening for
a wagon entrance, A small pediment above the roof is flankead
by two small dome-like objects.

The entire complex of buildings on the west side of
Gay Street contribute to the effect which the brewery has
over the entire area.

Recorders: Catharine F. Black
Maryland Historical Trust
April 24, 1972

Michael Bourne
Maryland Historical Trust
May 1, 1972
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NAME American Brewery

LOCATION 1700 North Gay Street
Baltimore, Maryland

ARCHITECT
DATES 1887

OWNER American Brewery Company

The American Brewery is not only a unique piece of
nineteenth~-century industrial architecture, but also played
an important role in the history of Baltimore business and
the development of one of its major industries, brewing.

With its variety of stained glass windows, three in-
credible towers, detailed exterior brickwork, and exuberant
silhouette, it dominates the skyline of east Baltimore. 1Its
style of architecture, easily identifiable with the ethnic
background of the Germans whose homes surrounded it and who
worked there, can best be described as "Middle European
Chalet."

The structure was erected in 1887 for John Frederick
Wiessner who had owned a small brewery on that site since
1863. No record naming the architect has been found. The
area was replete with breweries, there being 21 separate
operations in Baltimore City and the surrounding county at
the time Wiessner opened his new building. It covered an
area of about two acres and was equipped with the latest
brewing machinery and ice equipment. Its capacity in 1887
was 100,000 barrels.

The Wiessner family operated the business until Prohibition
when they sold it to the FitzSimmons family who continued in
operation as the American Malt Company until after the repeal
of Prohibition in 1933. American, a division of the Allegheny~-
Pepsi Beverage Corporation, continues to produce beer in the
brewery.

Across the street from the brewery stand three brick
buildings. One is a three-story, three-bay long townhouse
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with large side yard enclosed by a brick and cast iron fence.
The brownstone window sills and segmental arches continue in
unbroken lines across the facade, giving the needed horizontal
effect to the otherwise vertical building. Its details are in
the Eastlake and North Italian Renaissance styles.

The double, two-story building north of the aforementioned
yard is built in the Romanesgue style, half in rough brownstone,
half in brick and granite. Both parts of the double building
are nearly identical, the former having a door in one of its
two arches.

Adjoining the double building is a two-story, seven-bay
long structure used for a warehouse. Each bay is separated
by pilaster strips. The central bay has a large opening for
a wagon entrance. A small pediment above the roof is flanked
by two small dome-like objects.

The entire complex of buildings on the west side of
Gay Street contribute to the effect which the brewery has
over the entire area.

Recorders: Catharine F. Black
Maryland Historical Trust
April 24, 1972

Michael Bourne
Maryland Historical Trust
May 1, 1972
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